" UNITED STATES CNVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

BEFORE THL REGIONAL ADMINISTRATOR

In the Matter of:

|

Hygienic Sanitation Company, Inc., ) 1. F. & R, Docket No. I11-131-C
)
)

Respondent

INITIAL DECISION

Preliminary Statement

This is a proceeding initiated under Sec. 14{(a)(1) of the Federal
Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, as amended, (FIFRA}

[7 U.S.C. 136 1(a){1)], 1973 Supp., for the assessment of a civil penalty
for vioiation of the Act.

On June 15, 1977, ithe United States Environmental Protection Agency
(Complainant) issued a Complaint and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing,
charging Hygienic Sanitation Company, Inc. {Hygienic), a Pennsylvania
corporation (Respondent), with a violation of the Act. An Answer to said

V/
Complaint and Request for llearing was duly filed and dated July 1, 1977. <

j}r_liﬁﬂ{ffﬂﬁﬂufiﬂ?qﬁﬁfﬁﬂiﬁﬁfaTnt was withdrawn by wmotion granted (Tr. 185)
and a.new Count Threec substituted by motion granted (Tr., 192).
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Factually, Mr. and Hrs. Wayne C. Moimer engaged Hyg%enic
to treat their home.in Strongstown, Pennsylvania for termites. . |
Hygienic inspeéﬁéd the premiseé and, as'a resu]t,-did treat said premises
on July 21, 1975. The Complaint herein arose from the manner.and means by
which said treﬁtment waslaccomplished and the effects thereof on Ehe surround-
ing environment, primarily the fact that the pesticide made its way through
a drain pipe to a nearby stream and B]timately to a fish hatchery where
approximately 2,400 trout were killed.

Complainant alleges that the Respondent:vio1atéd FIFRA by:

(1) a]1owin§ the pestic}de Shell Aldrite 4 Emulsifiabfe Concentrate
insecticide {EPA Reg. Ho. 201-245-AA) (hereinafter "Shell Aldrite") to
come into contact with and substantially and adversely affect a stream
and beneficial wildlife during the application of said pesticide at the
home of Mr. and Mrs. Wayne C. Weimer, Strongstéwn, Pennsylvania, to control
termites;

(2) applying the pesticide Shell Aldrite to a garden and apple tree;

(Bi applying the pesticide Shell Aldrite aboveground to the corners
and eaves of the Weimer home; _

(4} 'allowing the pesticide Velsicol Gold Crest Termide (EPA Reg. MNo.
876-233 and 8?6—233-Aﬂ) (hereinafter "Gold Crest”) to come into contact
with and subslantially and adversely affect a stream ?nd bepeficial wildlife;

(5) applying the pesticide Gold Crest to a garden and apple tree; and

(6) applying the pesticide Gold Crest aboveground to the corngrs and

eaves of the MWeiner homne,
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The 1abe1ing for the Gold Crest sti:- s, in pertinént‘part:

HARNING

Do not contaminate feed or foodstuffs. This product is |
toxic to fish, birds and other wildlife. Birds and other
wildlife in treated areas may be kiiled. Keep out of
iakes, streams or ponds. Do not apply where runoff is
likely to occur. Do not apply when weather condilions
favor drift from areas treated. Do not contaminate
water by cleaning of equipment or disposal of wastes.
Apply this product only as specified on this Tabel.
Emphasis Added) EPA Ex. 3 and 4.

The labeling for the Shell Aldrite states, in pertinent part:

; ' READ THE DIRECTIONS AND PRECAUTIONS CAREFULLY
» AMD FOLLOW THEM AT ALL TIMES.

Do not apply or allow to drift to areas cccupied by
unprotected humans or beneficial animals. Do not
contaminate feed and foodstuffs. This product is
E poisonous to fish and wildlife. Keep out of Takes,
ponds and streaws. Uo not apply in any manner not

“specified on the Tabel. ({Emphasis Added) (EPA Ex. 5 and 6.)

The labels and EPA's registration of those labels (EPA Ex. 3—@)
were stipulated to and admitted into evidence, without objection bf
Respondent. (Tr. 3-6) While Respondent did attempt, however, to subsc-
quently question the authenticity of each of the labels, an affidavit
(EPA Ex. 9) signed by Mr. William Carson, onc of Respondent's witnesses H

and a participant in the July 21, 1975 application of the pesticides, was

. stipulated to by the parties (EPA Ex. 2 and 2A) and admitted into evidence

without objection by the Respondent. (Tr. 6, 8) This affidavit establishes




that the pesticides applied by Regpondvnl'on_duly 21, 1975, were those
registered by EPA. Mr. Carson's affidavit, in fact, citeslthé same
registration hﬁmbers for the Shell A]drité and the Gold Crest as set
forth on the EPA registered Tabel for each of those products.

Complainant avers that each of the allegations set forth 16 sub-
paragraphs 1 through 6 above is inconsistent with the relevant pesticides'
labeling, and thus 1is a violation of Sec. 12(a)(2){6), (7 U.S.C.
$1363(a) (2) (6)).

The parties have entered into the fol]éwing stipulation of fact

and law (EPA Ex. 1, Tr. 1-2):

" 1.  On or about July 21, 1975, Hygienic Sanitation
Company, Inc. was a corporation doing business
in the State of Pennsylvania.

2. On or about July 21, 1975, John E. Potts was an
employee of Hygienic Sanitation Company.

3.  On or about July 21, 1975, William E. Carson was
an employee of Hygienic Sanitation Company.

4. The residence of Mr. and Mrs. Wayne C. Heiwer is
focated in Strongstown, Pennsylvania:

5.  LCarney Run is an intermediate stream.

6. Carney Run supplies the source of water for the
Biue Goose Fish Hatchery.

7. Hygienic Sanitation Company has had an approximate
annual gross sales of $1.2 million.

8.  On or about July 2}, 1975, Hygienic Sanitation
Company, acting through its employces, Messrs. L
Carson and Potts, used and applied Shell Aldrite 4
Emulsifiable Insecticide, a termaticide, in and
about the residence of Mr. and Mrs. Wayne C. Weimer.
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On or about July 21, 1 ', Hygienic Sanitation Company,
acting through its empl. .-es, Messrs. Carson and Potls,
used and applied VYelsicoi Gold Crest Termide, a terma-

<. ticide, in and about the residence of Mr. and Mrs.
Wayne C. Weimer. _ '

10.  On or about July 21, 1975, Shell Aldrite 4 and Gold

Crest Termide, as used and applied by respondent,- came
into contact with Carney Run.

11. On or about July 21, 19?5, approximately 2,400 brook
trout at the Blue Gopse Fish Hatchery were exposed to
Shell Aldrite 4, a termaticide, and Gold Crest

Termide, a termaticide, and as a consequence were
killed.

12. On or about July 21, 1975, Shell Aldrite 4 Enulsifiable
! Concentrate Insecticide, a termaticide, was a pesticide
within the meaning of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide

and Rodenticide Act, 7 U.S.C. Sec. 136{u).

13, On or about July 21, 1975, Velsicol.Gold Crest Termide
! Emutlisifiable Concentrate, a termaticide, was a pesticide
Zgri within the wmeaning of the Federal Insecticideszungicide
and Rodenticide Act, 7 U.S.C., Sec. 136{u). =
‘Both the Shell Aldrite and Gold Crest labels state that each product

is to be applied only as specified on the label. The labels of both

products also stale Lhat the products should be kept out of lakes, ponds

and streams. {EPA Ex. 3 and 5).

Respondent has by stipulation admilted that its pesticide application
at the home of the Veimers eventually entered Carney Run which resuited

in the fish kill. ltespondent, however, denies liability for other reasons

which will be discussed later.

2/ Respondent also stipulated, with minor exceptions, to Complainant's
Exhibits 1-14 as cvidence. Respondent’s exceptions are sei forth in [PA
Ex. 2B and 2C. Respondent did not object to any of the samples taken of
the stream nor of the results of those samples. These samples indicated
gross pesticide contamination of Carney Run.

—



Complainant has proposed a civil - nalty assessment of $5,000 for
each of the six alleged violations or Lotal'qﬁseﬁsment of $30,000.
The rema%ﬁing primary isﬁues of fact aré a; follows:
1. Whether the pesticide Shell Aldrite was applied

by Respondent to the VWeimer's garden and apple
tree;

2. Whether the pesticide Shell Aldrite was applied
above ground by Respondent to the corners and
caves of the {eimer's residence;

3. Whether the pesticide Gold Crest was applied by
‘Respondent to the Weimer's garden and apple tree; and

4,  Whether the pesticide Gold Crest was applied above

ground by Respondent to the corners and eaves of
the Weimer's residence.

Befgre discussing these issues, reference should be made to certain
31!’ facts which, although the subject of the stipulation previously referred
to, have been raised or questioned bj'Respondent either during the hearing
or on briefs. These issues are: |

a) VWhether Carney Run is a stream;

b} Whether the chemicals Shell Aldrite and Gold Crest
are pesticides; and

i ¢) Whether a person other than Respondent caused the
, , death of the brook trout at the Blue Goose Fish
Hatchery on July 21, 1975.
Respondent stipulated to a and b above and there was nothing
inserted into Lhe record to aller the facts of the stipulation. Therefore,
as to a and b I find that these facts are as stipulated, i.e., Carney

Run is an intermediate stream and Shell Aldrite and Gold Crest are, pesticides

within the meaning of FIFRA.
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| - As to c above, the record is clear 'wap,fhe fiﬁh kill was the résult
of the application of pesticides by Hyygienic at ;he Weiner residence
on July 21, ]9;5. The Department of Envirpnmental Resources of the State
of Pennsylvania (hereinafter "DER") did, in fact, ascertain that Respondent's
application of pesticides at the weimér residence caused the cont;mination
on July 21, 1975. tic. Thomas Proch of DER succinctly described DER's -
investigation of the contamination aﬂd stated that the stream contamination
began at the 6" pipe,gj adjacent to the Heimer residence. (Tr. 117-119)
Mr. McCarthy, also of DER, testificed tha% 1t was readily apparent
that the pesticide application at the home had caused the problem and tﬁat
it was not caused by any other source. {Tr. 157-158) Respondent's
application of Shell Aldrite and Gold Crest were the only

sources of contamination that killed the approximately 2,400 brook trout

at the Blue Goose Fish Hatchery.

Discussion:

a. Whether the pesticide Shell Aldriic was applied by

Respondent to the Weimer's garden and apple tree;

L. Whether the pesticide Shell Aldrite was applied

above ground by Respondent to the corners and eaves -
of the Weimer's residence.

The testimonj of both Mr., Wayne Weimer and Mrs. Darleen Weimer
indicates that Respondent applied the pesticides above ground to the

garden, apple trec, and corners and eaves of the Weimer residence.

(Tr, 56-57)

3/ This 6" pipe ran directly from the Weimer residence to the bank of
Carney Run. Samples were taken from above and below the entrance of the
pipe into Carney Run. No contamination was shown above the pipe. Contami-
nation below the pipe indicated many parts per million of the constituents
of -the pesticides in question. {Tr. 125, 163, EPA Ex. 12, 23, 26-28.)
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Mr. Weimer further stated that Mr. “tts:

...didn't actually apply it (tao pééticide) to the
garden. (L just happened to fall in the garden, the

flower bed that was under the eaves. He wasn't trying
to apply it. ‘

Ms. Blackwell: So he was spraying the areca that you
gave a description?

Mr. Weiwmer: He wore or less ran the rod up and down
the eaves, and, of course, “the splash fell down into
a flower garden that bordered on the side of the house.
Mr. Potts applied the pesticide by pulling the rod from

the ground and spraying the pesticide onto the house
and garden. (Tr. 73) :

Mr. Potts, in his deposition, did not remember spraying the pesticides
nor discussing the spraying with the Weimers. {Supp. Tr. 45-46) He speci-
fically denied spraying the flower garden. {Supp. Tr. 52) As for the

jgly spraying of the corners and eaves, Mr. Potts testified as follows:

0. Do you recall that day at any pornt, Mr. Potts, having
treated any of the eaves or exterior portions of the house?

A. (Mr. Potts:} They said no. I don't remember putting
anything up there. T don't know what we had any reason
for. HWe put some hombs off in the house but the eaves was
there. HNo; I don't remember doing anything, or I don't
remeiber Bill do anything on the outside. 1 don't know
what was done for. (Supp. Tr. 20; Emphasis added)

Mrs. Weimer testified that she saw the spraying of the corners
and eaves of the house and flower garden. (Tr. 76)
Mr. Carson, Ehe supervisor of Mr. Potts in 19?5, stated that use of
the pesticides above ground would not have been a common, ordinary procedure
in 1975. (Tr. 94} Yet, two people saw Mr. Potts apply pesticides above
ground to the corners and eaves of the home and incidentally to the.flower garden,

~ Such applications are not permitted by the Shell Aldrite label which

also states that the pesticide not be used»in-a;manner not -prescribed by
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- the label. -(EPA Ex. 5—6) Additionall. termites, not wasps or bees, are

target pests qf'the pesticides. Therciore, Respondent's applications ﬁo

the corners aﬁd eaves and the garden would be inconsistent with the label.
| From the above rcfcrencc§ to the record, and From the'demeqnor of

the witnesses, Mr. and Mrs. Heimer,ﬂf I must conclude that Mr. Potts did

attempt to spray the eaves possib1x with the thought of being helpful to

the Weimers. I also conclude that there was not a direct spraying

of the garden except as a consequencé of thp spraying of the eaves.éj

As for the application to the app}e trée, Mr. Potts stated that he

applied the pesticides to the apple tree. (Supp. Tr. 4G, 50-52, 65; EPA

Ex. 7) Mr. and Mrs. Weimer both witnessed him applying the pesticides to

the apple tree. -(Tr. 56, ?6) Mr. Weimer specifically stated that Mr. Potts

sprayed around "the base, the trunk of the tree and up the sides and in a

few of the 1imbs." Mr. Weimer also testified that Mr. Potts stated he didn't

feel the tree problem was from termites, but he sprayed- it anyway. (Tr. 57)

‘Mr. Potts stated that he rodded the tree, but did nol spray the tree.

(Supp..Tr. 19-20, 46, 50-53) He did testify that he had rodded into the

ground around the tree. (Supp. Tr. 63} Mr. Potts, however, stated in

his affidavit of GQctober 1D, 1975, prior to his deposition on August 25,

1978, that he had sprayed the surface of the ground below the apple tree.

(CPA Ex. 7) Therefore, it seems from his testimony, he both sprayed and

rodded the tree and the ground around the tfee.

4/ Mr. Potts' testimony was by deposition on August 25, 1975, at which the
ALJ was not present,

5/ The record is clear that at the time of this application, neither Mr.
.Potts nor Mr. Carson had received any formal training -on the application
of pesticides. (Tr. g7.98)




A sample tdken of the ground arou: ! thé base of the'tfée showed the-
bresence of aldrin {a constituent of Shell ﬂidrite) and heptachlor and
chlordane (conétituents of Gold Crest); {EPA E£x. 34-36)

Spraying and rodding of an apple tree is not a u;e pernitted by
the label of the pesticide Shell Aldrite. Therefore, it niust bé concluded
that Shell Aldritc was sprayed on the surface and rodded into tﬁe ground
around the apple tree {n contravent%on of the instructions on the label.

¢. VWhether the pesticide Gold Crest was applied to the

Heimer's garden and apple tree.

d. Vhether the pesticide Gold Crest was applied above
ground to the corners and eaves of the Weimer
residence.

The. facts set forth in DISCUSSION a and b are essentially the same for
the allegations set {Torth in ¢ and d. Therefore, the discussion

in those paragraphs are applicable td ¢ and d-

A sampie taken of the inside of the apple lree indicated the presence

of chlordane. Other constituents were not detected in the samplie. {EPA

Ex. 34:36}) This corresponds with the chlordane found in the soil samples

taken of the ground surface ab the base of the tree. In those samples,
however, aldrin, dieldrin and heptachlor were also detected.
-The spraying of the corners and caves of a howe is not a use permitted

by the Gold Creét label. Also nol permitted by the label is an application

of Gold Crest to an apple tree. Accordingly, such applications are all in

violation of Lhe Tabel, which states that applications are only to be con-

ducted in accordance with label specifications.

The record is unclear as to at what point one of the pesticides was -

used-as opposed to the other for any use.




Mr, Carson was responéiﬁ]e for ui-ing the pesticides used on du]y 21,
1975, (Tr. 93;'$upp. Tr. 17)  Yet, Mr. Carson_did not even know that He
had wixed the-besticide Shell Aldrite. (Tr. 85-86) Mr. Carson, at the
hedring, however, stated that:

...(T)he one can sl have had Aldrin and Chlordane.

Such a mixture of aldrin and chlordane is a violation of each of the
pesticide's label directions for usé because each of the pesticides is only
to be mixed with water, not another pesticide. Given the chemical consti-
tuency of the s0il samples around the tree ;nd the strecam samples, Respondent
in all Tikelihood mixed and applied the two pesticides together out of
one barrel. Additionally, HMr. Carson stated that only one barrel at a time
could be used. {Tr. 95) Mr. Weimer did not recall more than one drum
being used at a time {Tr. 55), but he recalled that the spraying of the
pesticide and the basement application came f}Dm the same drum. (Tr. &6)
Mrs. Weimer recalled the same. (Tr. 79) Only this conclusion can explain
the presence of both pesticides in the stream and outside. If only one
pcstjc{de was being used at a time, the samples could have been different.

Accordingly, Respondent may also he found to have violated each of the
use directions of Lhe label by having mixed and applied the Shell Aldrite
with the Gold Crest pesticide.

Complainant has not proposed a separate penalty for such violation.
However, it may be considered in dotermining the amount of penalty should
one be appropriate. " -

Additionally, as to application of peéticides to a garden and apple

tree or applying the pesticides above ground to Lhe corner and caves of the

Weimer home, there is no evidence in the record to indicate anyone other -
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. then Hygienic may have accomplished suuh-app]icatibn and I_cohclude that

1iability for such applihation shall . - impbsed upon Hygienic.

Issues of Law-

A.  Whether the legality of the installation of and the
discharge from the 6" pipe is relevant and material
to Respondent's violations of FIFRA;

B. Whether Respondent is a distributor within the weaning
of FIFRA; ’

C. UWhether the proposed penalty of $30,000 should be
assessed against Respondent for its violations of FIFRA.

A. Uhether the legality of the installation of and the discharge from

the 6" pipe is relevant and material to Respondent's violations of FIFRA:

Respondent, in its Answer, alleged that the pesticides had come into
contact with Carney Run because of "an unknown, unauthorized, unlawful and
improper drain device system installed and maintained by the property

owner(s) in contravention of local building codes and ordinances and/or by

virtue of latent conditions of the property of which Hygienic was not Jaw-
fully charged wilh notice.” Mr. Heimer testified that he did not have

a permit for the discharge from the 6" pipe nor for the coverage.of-the
drainage system after it had been installed. (Tr. 46, 71)

Complainant argues that whether or not there was a permit for the pipe
is irrélevant to Respondent's violations of FIFRA. Essentially, Respondent
is attempting to argue that Cthe lack of a permit for the pipe is dn 1nté}-
vening or superceding cause and therefore absolves Respondent from its

T lTiability under FIFRA,

Complainant has briefed this point thoroughly with the resultant

conclusion that, if a person is aware, or should be aware of an inter-
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vening factbr liability will not be sup- . eded.

In my opinion it is not necessary Lu consider this issue of taw to
reach a'conc]uégon on this point. Respbndent'ﬁas under a duty to ascertain,
prior to undertaking the application of thé pesticides, whether they would
or could flow into a slveam or harm humans or wildlife. Respondcht did not
exercise veasonable due care in discovering that which would have been found
had Requndent properiy inspected thé ﬂeimer praperty or asked further
appropriate questions.

Mr. Scherrah, Mvr. Potts'® manager, testi%ied that Mr. Poits had Lold

him that hc had not attempted to determine whether there were any springs

or drains about or around the'h0use.
‘Mr. Stapleton: Did you ever discuss with Mr. Potts
vhether he had attempted to determine whether there
were springs, drains around .or about the house?
Mr. Scherrah: Yes, I asked him

Mr. Stapleton: And what did he éay?

Mr. Scherrah: Mo. It wasn't a logical question that
would come up. It never happened before. {Tr. 222)

Yet,-Mr. Potis testified that he had asked about the springs. .
{Supp. Tr. 11}

Complainant's brief (Br. 23, 24, 25, 26, and 27} sets forth ;
detailed des&ripf%un of the teslimony of Mr. Potts relative to his visits
to the Weimer home parlicularly with respect to his first visit. Yhile

most of these assertions of what Mr. Potts did or did not observe are

capable of different interpretations, these references do indicate what

seemed apparent at the hearing, that Mr. and Mrs. Weimer informed Mr. Potts
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of the presence of Lhe spring, the ov--rall condition of the basement

‘of the house and the yard area, and Fe. Polts and Mr. Carson appareht]y

-concluded that the treatment of the house and yard area could proceed

without incident. It was not for Mr. or Mrs. Weimer to make the decision.

It was incumbent upon the agents of llygienic to make a thorough'survey of

the premises which wouid have disclosed the spring, the 6" pipe, the stream,

and possibly even the existence of the fish hatcher}. Mr. Weimer's knowledge

of the premises and of what might be a consequence of the use of the pesticides

as the result of the layout of said premisés should not have been relied upon.
Mr. Potts apparently ignored Mr. Meimer's statement about the drain

{Tr. 43}, and he did not properly react to the statements about drainage

problems. (Tr. 50)

The facts show that Respondent,_instead of exercising due carc, per-
formed in a neg1{gunt manner in ils app]icat%on of the pesticides. |
Respondent was under a duty to anticipate any pfob]ems that may have arisen
because of the toxic nature of the pesticides involved. Respondent failed to
anticfpate, much less ascertain, any foreseeable problems. Therefore,
Respondent's 1iability cannot be superceded. Mr. Weimer's lack of a permit

for ihe pipe does not excuse nor mitigate Respondent's negliyence.
B. Whether Respondent is a distributor within the meaning of FIFRA:

The dmposition of Civil penalties for vialations of FIFRA is;goverﬁed

by Section 14{a) of the Act, which provides in pertinent part as follows:
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“(1} 1In General. -- Any - jistrant, commercial

applicator, wholesaler, dealed, retailer, or other
distributor who violates any provision of this Act
may be assessed a c¢ivil penalty by the Administrator
of not more than $5,000 for each offense.

e

graph (1) who violates any provision of this Act

subsequent to receiving a written warning from

the Administrator or following a citation for a

prior violation, may be assessed a civil penalty

by the ndministE?tor of not more than $1,000 for

each offense.” =

Hygienic raises a jurisdictional objection to these proceedings.
It contends that it is not a registrant, commercial applicator, wholesater,
dealer, retailer or other distributor included in Section 14{a)(1), and
that Section 14(a)(2);c0nsequent1y governs the proceedings against it.
Under Section 14{a}(2)}, Hygienic can be assessed a civil penalty since
it has been the subject of and has received a written warning or a citation
for a prior violation. EPA contends that llygienic is a distributor of
pesticides within the meaning of Section 14{a){1), since it supplies the
nesticide which it uses in its exterminating operations.
It should be noled that on September 30, 19786, FIFRA was amended,

{P.L. 95-396, 92 Stal. 819) ({Federal Pesticides Act of 1978). These
amendments now state that any applicator who does not apply an unregistered {
pesticide is subject only to a penalty of not more than $71,000 per violation ~
[814(a}{2}] Such applicators are not scllers or distributors of pesticides.

[82{e){(1)] BDBoth pesticides herein are registercd.

6/ Tt would also follow thal under Section 14{a}{2), Hygienic would be

subject to much lighter penalties.
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It is CPA's position thatl 6ny violalions that occurred prior fo.

:September 30, 1978, are subject to Ll jwovisions and interpretations of the

statute in existence at the time of the violation. I agree. It is also
EPA's policy that all cases, now in existence or to be 1nst1tuted based
on violations prior to Sepltember 30, 1978, are to be processed in a(cordance

with FIFRA as it cxisted prior to the amendments. A1l violations occurring

on or after September 30, 1978, aré to be prosecuted under the Federal
Pesticides Act of 1978,

The word "distributor" is not dc{ined in FIFRA. 1In ordinary
usage it means one who “distributes,” which commonly means to deal out or
spread out units among a number of recipienls, with no particular manner of
distribqtion being specified. 2

Hygienic's position, however, is that as used in FIFRA, "distributor”
means specifically one who commercially dealé in pesticides by selling
them. Hygienic asserts that it did not sell Shell Aldrite and/or Gold
Crest, but only used it in the sale of a service.

The terms "registrant, cowmmercial applicatov, wholesaler, dealer,
retailer” which precede "other distributor” all refer to persons
who are generally in the business of supplying or applying pesticides.

11 seems obvious that the term “other disfributor“ was added to make
clear that the preceoding Lerms were nol intended Lo be a complete listing

of the types of commercial distribution of pesticides wHich were Lo be

subject to Scction 14(a)(1}.

7/ See c.g., Hebster's New Horld Diclionary of Lhe nmer1can LanJuqJe
-(C(ﬂ 1je Ld tmn)
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The treatment performéd by llygieni: dsing a pesticide purchased by
it was in substénce a comercial distribution of a pesticide. It would
not be accurate to say, as llygicnic does, that furnishing the pesticide
was simply “incidental" to the rendition of the sérvice of app]yihg it.
Hygienic's services were utilized because the pesticides were hazardous
and must be handled with care, but 1£ was Lhe pesticide itself which
accomplished the destruction of the pests.

Section 14 of FIERA was added by the Federal Enviromnent Pesticide
Control Act of 1972, P. L. No. 92-516, 86 Stat, 973 (1972) ("1972 Act™),
which completely rewrote FIFRA as it then existed. The purpose of the
1972 Act was "to change FIFRA from a labeling law into a comprehensive
regulatory statute that will henceforth more carefully control the
manufacture, distribution and use of hesticideé." H. R. Rep. No. 92-511,
92d Cong. 1st Sess. 1 (1971). Section 14, providing for the first time
for civil penalties was considered a necessary part of the regulatory
program. Id. at 25.

An explanation for Congress' rcasons in Section 14 for subjecting
some persons to more stringent sanctions than others is found in a
supp]ementhl report of the Senate committee on Agricul lure and Fo%cstry

on H. R. 10729, the bill which subsequentiy became the 1972 Act, The

report stated, S. Rep. No. 92-838 (Part 1I) 92d Cong., 2d Sess. 23
(1972): } i




"The amendment [to Seclion 147 of the Committee
on. Agriculture and Forestry provided for an orderly
progression of penaltics bascd on the seriousness of
the offense. Thus, starting with the ordinary house- .
holder, private applicator, farmer, or other person
not in the pesticide business committing an offense
not deemed suitable for criminal prosecution the
Committee on Agriculture provided for a maximum
civil penalty of $1,000. For an offense by such a
person deemed serious enough for criminal prosecution
the wmaxinum penalty would be $1,000 plus irprisonment
for 30 days. The Committec on Agriculture and Forestry
felt that an offense by a registrant, commercial
applicator, wholesaler, dealer, tetailer, or other
distributor should be treated more seriouslty than
an offense by a householder. A registrant, for example,
should have greater knowledge of the dangers of
pesticides and greater familiarity with the law
regulating their use. A violation by a registrant
would be wuch more Tikely to have widespread and
serious cffects than a violation by a householder,
home gardener, or farmer. Consequently, the
amendment of the Committee on Agricuiture and
Forestry prescribed a civi) penalty of not nore
than 55,000 for an offense by. @ person in the
business of making, selling, or applying pesticides.
An offense by such a person serious enough for
criminal prosecution would be subject to a fine of
up to 325,000 and imprisonment for up to 1 year."

Section 14{a)(2) with its less rigorous enforcement provisions was
thus intended to apply only to persons not in the pesticide business,

which -would not be true of liygienic. Violalions by persons not in the

pesticide business were regarded as less serious Lhan violations by persons

in the pesticide business. Hhile the report discussed specifically the

difference in penalties, Lho reasoning applies wilh equal Torce ty the -
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fact that persons in the pesticide butisess are held Lo a stricter standard

~of care than persons not in Lhe béStiL;JG business, and can be assessed
civil pcanltiés without firsi having been given a written warning or a
citation for a prior violation.

It is EPA's position that the activily of a structural peét control
operator in supplying and applying a pesticide is a form of distribulion.
He sells nol only a service {the abp11cation), but also a product (the
pesticide}. The price paid by the cusiomer necessarily reflecis the cost
of the appjicatiOn and the cost of the pesiicide.

In the instant case, Hygienic is a structural pest control opérator.

} In the ordinary course of business, llygienic supplies the pesticides which
1t applies. Thercefore, the dctivity of Hygienic in supplying and applying
a pesticide is a form of distribution and Hygienic is a "distributor" within
the meaning of Section 14{a}(1). .
the Congress intended Section 14{a){1) to apply to all persons "in the
pesticide business" and Section 14{a)(2) to apply to all persons not “in
the pesticide business.™ Congress recognized that a person in the pesticide
business has "greater knowledge of the dangers of pesticides and,..Lhe law
regulating their usc” than a person not in the pesticide business and that

a violation by a person in the peslicide business is "wore likely Lo have

o r— e b 2

videspread and serious effects” than a violation by a person not in the
pesticide business. Therefore, Congress felt that a violation by-a pErson
) in the pesticide business "should be lreated wore seriously™ than a violation

by a person not in the pesticide business.  Section 14{a} was structured to

i
|




carry out this legislative policy.

Buttressing the legislative history is the principle that where general

words follow specific, Lhe former are held to the same class as the latter.

Under this principle, a catch-all provision is forwed which includes all
of the same class and allows none to escape by reason of not heing. specifically

named. Garner v. Louisiapna, 368 U. S. 157, 82 S.Ct. 248, 7 L.Ckd.2d 207

{(1968). The persons specifically naméd in Secltion 14(a)(1), "registrant,
commercial applicator, wholesaler, dealer, retailer," are in the pesticide
business. Thereforce, the general words “othe; disiributor" form a catch-all
provision which inciudes all persons of Lhe same class, namely all parsons
in the pesticide business.

A structural pest control operator is in the pesticide business,

Therefore, he should be treated more seriously than a person not in the
pesticide business and held accountable under Séction 14(a)(1). To interpret
the Act otherwise would be to hold a structural pest control operator to
the same standard of care as householders, home gardencrs, and farmers.
Such a holding would defeal the statutory purpose in having two levels of
liability. A statule susceptible of either of iwo opposed interpretations
must be reéd in the manner which effectuates rather than frustrates the
major purposc of the legislative draftsmen. §hm1ﬁ}1j&ﬁl@j}gﬂﬁ§ﬁgjggl
335 U.S. 1, 68 5.Ct. 1375, 92 L.Ld. 1787 (1948).

It is a generally accepted proposition that remedial leyislation

should be construcd broadly to effectuate its purposes. Tcherepmin v. Knight,

389 U.S. 332, 88 S.CE. 548, 19 L.Ed.2d. 564 (1967). Congress intended

FIFRA to protect human health and the environment frowm the adverse cffects




of pesticides. - Thus, FIFRA is considercd Lo be a remedial statute and
should be given.a Tiberal dinlerpretation to achieve the Congressional
intent.

Hygienic argues Lhat subjecting it to 1iability under Sectién 14¢a) (1)
is contrary to Congress' intention in expressly providing Lhat the provision
for certification of applicators in ;mended FIFRA shall not become effective
until five years after the date of enactmenl of the 1972 Act {i.e., until
October 21, 1977}. 1t claims Lhat by so doina Congress intended
not to hold people with inferior training to the same level of exposure
for civil penalties as those people who proved fheir expertise in
comp]ying‘with Federal standards by becoming certified commercial
applicatars. .

This aryument ignores the distribution asbects of Hygienic's
operations. As heretofore found, llygienic supplies the pesticide
as well as applies it. There is, therefore, in a real sense, a wide-
spread distribution of pesticides by Hygienic. Given the stated
congressional purposce of qgenerally subjecting persons in the pesticide
business Lo the more rigorous cnfovcement provisions of Section 14(a)(]),

it is more in accord wilh that purpose Lo construe narrowly any excemplion

of a person in the peslicide business from that section.
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Hygienic argues that the words “other distributor" as used in
Section lﬂ(aj(l) are nccessarily limivncd by the preceding terms “"wholesaler,

dealer, retailer," to those who soll only in the sawe manner as Lhose persons

customarily do. The rule of "ejusdem generis" is a useful cannon of con-
struction, but it should not be used to defeat the TEgislative:purpose.
United.States v. Alpers, 338 U. S. 680, 632-83 {1950). Herc, subjecting
Hygienic to Tiability under Sectioﬁ ]4(5){]) is in accordance with the purpose

of the statute.

Accordingly, I found that Hygienic is:a distributor subject to Tiability
under Scction 14(a)(1). |

The conclusion ihat Hygienic is a distributor is also supported by
Pesticide Cnforcemenlt Policy Statement ("PEPS") No. 6, issued by the
Environmental Protection Agency on December 17, 1976, 41 FR 55932
(December 23, 1976}, In construing-a statuté, it is appropriate to consider

how it has been interpreted by the agency charged with enforcing it. See

Evergreen Helicopters, Inc., T.F.&R. Docket No. IV - 214c (EPA) (June 10,

1976); Cf. Skidmore v. Swift & Co., 323 U.S. 134, 140 (1940). PEPS No. ©
deals with the EPA's enforcement policy with respect Lo the use. by professional
structural pest control operators of service containers to transporl and

4/

temporarily store pesticides prior Lo applying them. The stalement

8/ The enforcement policy statement does nol explicitly define the term
“structural pest control) operator" but the discussion in the statcment -leaves
no doubt thal the term includes professionals who apply pesticideés Lo
buildings and other struclures. See Pesticide Enforcement Policy

Statement No. 5, 41 FR 41142 (Sept. 21, 1976).
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considered-specifica11y Lhe applicabili’. Lo structural pest control
oﬁerations of the following proyisions ui I'IFRA:  Section 3{a). which
provides that no person may “distributc, sell, offer for sale, hold for
sale, ship, deliver for shipment, or receive and {having so receiycd)
deliver or offer to deliver” an unregistered pesticide to another.person;
Section B(b) making Lhe books and regords of any "producer, distributor,
carrier, dealer or any other person who sells or offers for sale, delivers
or offers for delivery" any pesticide, subject to inspection by the [PA;
Section Q(a) authorizing the EPA to enter and- inspect any establishment or
other place where pesticides "are held for distribution or sale;" and
Section 12(a){1) making it unlawful for any person “to distribute, sell,
offer for sale, hold for sale, ship, deliver for shipment, or receive and
{having so received) deliver or offer to de1iver“ to any person any
pesticide which is unregistered or adulterated or misbranded or which,
or the claims tor which, do not compiy with FIFRA in other respects.

In'PﬁPS Ma. G, the EPA took the position that professional structural
pest control operators who Supply and apply pesticides for hire engage in
the distribution or sale of pesticides within the meaning of FIFRA.
Accordingly, 1L was slated that their books and records and their premises
where they store pesticides arce subject to inspeclion pursuanl to éections B(b)
and 9{a), and Lhat they are subject Lo the prohibitions of Svclion 12(a) in
their use of Lhe service containers to store or transport pesticides prior
to application.

PEPS No. 6 is significant because it is a reminder that Section‘lﬂ mus &

be interpreled in Lhe conlext of the enlire stalute. See United States v.




-American Trucking Assocfation, 310 U.S. " 34, 542-43 (1940). Who is a

distributor within the meaning of FIFRA cunnot be determined sdTe]y by -
reference to the prohibitions against misusing besticides. (Jther consequences
also flow from whether a person is a distributor or not. The conclusion Lhat
Hygienjc 1s a distributor in judging its liability for misuse of 'a pesticide,
is consistent with the EPA's interpretation of other provisions of FIFRA

regulating the sale and distribution of pesticides.

C. Whether the proposed penralty of $30,000 should be assessed against

Respondent for its violations of FIFRA.

Section 14{a){1) of FIFRA provides that any distributor who violates
any provision of the Act may be assessed a civil penalty of not more than
$5,000 for each offense. 7 U.S.C. 5136 1{a){1). 1n determining the
amount of the penalty which is appropriate the Administrator must consider
(1) the gravity of Lhe violation, (ii) the size of lhe reapondﬁnt‘s buSiness,
and (ii%) the cffect on the person's ability to continue in business.

in eva}uating Lthe gravity of the violation, the Adwinistrator must
consider (1) Respondeni's history of compliance with FIFRA, and (i) any
evidence of good- fatth or lack thercolf. It is also appropriate to consider
the nature of Lhé violations which are the subject of this procecding, Lhe
environmental risks associated with these vicolations, and the actual enuiron;

mental harm which was causced by Lhe violations. .

The facts in this casc wilitale in favor of a high penally or the

maximum penalty since the Respondent has been charged with violation of

FIFRA previcusly. (EPA Ex. 14 and 15) Further, Mr. Carson, the manager
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of Respondent's Johnstown office for ynavt testified that the Respondent
did not train applicators on the proper wethods for administering pesticides
before hiring-tﬁem and sending them oul Lo work for the company. (Tr. 97-98)
In addition, Mr. Carson Lestified that he believed the training given by
the Respondent was inadequate. (Tr. 105-106) He also testified'éhat he
didn't always read pesticide labels before mixing and using pesticides.
(Tr. 103) 1In fact, after cump]etiun.of Lthe application Lo the Weimer
residence, Mr. Carson could not state what pestiéides had been applied.
{Tr. 98-99) At a minimum, it was negligent tb apply the Shell Aldrite
and Velsicol Gold Crest whon they knew or should have known that there were
underground springs under the Weimer premises.  Mr. and Hrs. Weimer, Mr. Proch
and Ms. Setright heard these springs.  {Tr. 56, 75, 119, 147, 148 and 153}
Also, Mr. Potts, Respondent's employee, knew Lhat the water supply for the
Weimer residence came from an undergrdund spring on the premises. (Supp.
Tr. 8-10} Clearly, the anplication of these pesticides to the roof caves
and the apple tree constitute violations of the Tabel directions for use and
Section 12(a}(2)(G) of the Act. Morcover, these created a serious environmental
risk to humans by spraving the pesticide around the Heiwer family. No
warning or precautionary statcoments about inhalaticn of the pesticides being
sprayed was given.to the Weimers. {(Tr. 57-58)

In determining the appropriatle penalty to be assessed, the Adninistrative

Law Judge may consult and rely upon the Guidelines for the Assessinent of

Civil Penaltices ("Guidelines™), published in the Federal Register at 39 FR-

27711, 40 CFR §5768.46 and 168. 60 {(July 1, 1977). These regulations
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provide further that, in his discretion, “» may increase or decrease
this amount.

The Guidef{nes provide for the establishment of the maximuwm civil
penalty for each offense since Respondent is a Category V company witlh
gross sales of approximately 52 million annually {(Tr. 250} and siﬁce it
was highly probable that there would be adverse cffects caused by Lhese
violations. Indeed, a serious fish Ei]1 resulted and extensive clean-up
operations were necessary to mitigate the adverse cenvironwental impact
of these violations, :

Initially, it must be preosumed that assessment of a civil penalty
pursuant to the Guidelines will not affect the ability of the Respondent
to continue in business. 40 CFR §168.43 and Guidelines Section IC{1){c),
39 FR 2?7]1:12 {(July 31, 1974).

The Administrative Law Judge and £he Admin%strator may, in their
discretion, reduce the peralty proposed insofar as is necessary to permit
the Respondent Lo continue in business provided the Respondent submits
bona fjdé financial information which conforms to generally recognized
accoun{ing procedurcs and which proves that assesswent of a given penalty
will not permii it Lo conlinue in business.

In this proceeding, the Respondent has faiied Lo provide a reliable
and persuasive shéwing Lhat iL will be unable to continue in business if
a $30,000 penalty is asscssed. Although the Respondent claims, through

its treasurer, Mr. Lowery, that it is unable Lo pay any penalty, (Tqa ?258-259)

it has not provided adequate documentation of this claim,
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Hr. Lowery's testimony is somewhal iwronsistent. It indicates that

thg balance sheets and other f{inancial ¢  menls submitted into evidence

do not accurately present the cconomic stalus of the Respondent. Mr.

Lowery has testified that he is familiar with the financial statements
he presented and that Lhey fairly and accurately set forth the fiﬁﬁncia]
status of the Company for Lhe applicable time pericds. {Tr. 245, 247,
248, 249 and 299) However. he also téstified that there are no entries on
the balance sheels Tor accounts veceivable although the Company had
receivables (Tr. 262) and he knows that this éata is "relevant.” (Tr. 294)
He doesn't know the details surrounding the $5,000 loan fvom Central Penn
Bank. {Tr. 263-264) He doesn't know the basis of the $27,033.39 liability
listed as owing to George Brehm, the former president of Lhe Respondent.
{Tr. 265-2066)
Respondent failed to sustain the burden thét either the ﬁespondent
wiil be unable to continue in business if the penalty is assessed or
special circumstances exist which militate against the proposed penalty.
Contrary to Respondent's characterization of the record, the record
indicates that Respondent only borrowed moncy one time to meet its payroll
(Tr. 259) and Respondent's culstanding loans on ils fleet of cars and
trucks is only $80,113 while the net book value of this flecet is $183,592.07
(Resp. [x. 2). There is po testimony on Lhe market value of this fleet, but

one can assume that i1t is approximalely cqual Lo the net book value ofl

the flect which is the purchase price minus ithe accumulated depreciation, =

-




Respondent also argues that Mr. Livsry's testimony was unchallenged.

Complainant did_not offer any rebuttal witness to address the Respondent's
financial exhibits which were presented to it for the first tjmé_at the
beginning of Mr. Lowery's testimony. However, even recognizing that
Mr. Lowery had only recently been empToyod by lygienic, his testimony
is inconsistent, incomplete and not persuasive- First, he
testified that he was familiar with the finapcial statements he presented
and that they fairly and accurately set forth the financial status of the
Company. Later, he contradicted himself, adwitted he was not familiar
with the basis for several of the entries under current liabilities and
admitted that accurate information on the value of Respondent's accounts
receivabié is relevant though this value does not appear in the Tinancial
statements submitied by him,

Respondent has not subuiilLted any financial evidence which conforms
to generally recognized accounting procedures in accordance with
Sections IC(1){c} and ID{2)(c) of the Guidelinecs for Assessment of Civi}

Penalties. I musl conclude Lhaf the penalty proposed under the Guidelines

will not affeck Lhe ability of Respondent to continue in business.-
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND « [ LUSIONS OF LAM

After cdhsidcration of Lhe entire record énd Lhe proposed findings
and conclusions submitted by the parties, I make the fo]]owinj findings
and conclusions of taw. Teo the extent proposed findings and conclusions
are not included, | have rejected them as either not being supported by

‘ a preponderance of the evidence, or as being unnecessary for the ultimate

" decision reached.

Findings of Fact

1. On or about July 21, 1975, Hygienic Sanitation Company was a
corporation doing business in the State of Pennsylvania with its office
- and principal place of busincss-]ocaped at American and Wingohocking
Streets, Philadelphia, Fennsylvania 19104,
: 2. 0On or about July 21, 197G, John L. Potts was an employce of
Hygienic Sanitation Company.
3. On or about July 21, 19756, William E. Carson was an_emp1oyee
of Hygienic Sanitation Company.
4. The residence of Mr. and Mrs. Hayne C. Weimer is located in

Strongstown, Pennsylvaria and was so on July 21, 1975.

5. Carney run is an intermediate stream.

6. Carney Run supplies Lhe source of water for the Blue Goose
Fish Hatchery. ' ’ ’
7. MNHygienic Sanitation Company has an annual gross sales of

approximately $2 million. -

;
!
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8. On or about July 21, 1975, Hy: .ic Sanitation Company, acting
through its employces, Messrs. Carson and Polts, used and applied Shell
Aldrite 4 Cmulsifiable Insecticide, a termaticide, in and about the
residence of Mr. and Mrs. Wayne C. Weimer,

9. On or about July 21, 1975, Hygienic Sanitation Company, actiny
through its employecs, Messrs. Carson and Potts, used and applied Velsicol
Gold Crest Terwide, a termaticide, in and about the residence of Mr. and
Mrs. Wayne C. Heimer. :

10. On or aboutl July 21,'1975, Shel} ﬂ]drité 4 and Gold Crest Termide,
as used and applied by Respondent, came into contact with Carney Run.

1. On or about July 2%, 1975, approximately 2,400 brook trout at
the Blue Goose Fish tlatchery were exposed to Sheil Aldrite 4, a termaticide,
and as a conscquchce were Killed.

12. On or about July 21, 1975, approximately 2,400 brook trout at
the Blue Goose Fish Hatchery were exposcd to Gold Crest Termide, a torma-
ticide, and as a consequence were killed.

13. On or about July 21, 1975, Hygicnic Sanitation, acting through
its employces, Messrs. Carsun and Potts, used and applied Velsicol Gold
Crest Termide Lo the Meimer's garden and apple Lree.

14.  On or about July 21, 1975, Hygienic Sanilation, acling through
ils employees, Messrs. Carson and Potts, used and applied Velsicol Gold
Crest Termide above ground to the corners and caves of the Weimer's residence.

15. On or aboutl July 21, 1975, lygicnic Sanitation, acting théuugh -

its employces, Messrs. Carson and Potls, used and applicd Shell Aldrite 4

above ground to the Heimer's residence.
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.]6. On or about July 2V, 1975, Ilvwenic Sanitation, acting through
its employecs, Messrs. Carson and Pottn, uscd and applicd Shell Aldrite 4
Lo the Weimer's garden and appie Lree. |
17. After the application of the Shell Aldrite 4 and Gold Crest
Termide and the resultant contamination of the soil under the hawme of
Mr. and Mrs. VWayne C. Weimer and the resultant contamination of Carney
Run, the MWeimer howe was relocated on the same premises and the soil under

the home was cxcavated, packaged, and deposited in a sanilary landfill.

Conclusions of Law

1. On or about July 21, 1975, Shell Aldrite 4 Emulsifiable Concen-
trate Insecticide, a termaticide, was a pesticide within the weaning of
the Federal Inseclicide, Fungicide and Rodentigide Act, 7 U.5.C., Sec. 136{u).

2. 0On or about July 21, 1975, Vé]sico] Gold Crest Termide Lmulsifiable
Concentrate, a termalicide, was a pesticide within the meaniny of Lhe l[ederal
Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, 7 U.S.C., Sec. 136(u).

3.7 Hygienic Sanitation Company, on July 21, 1975, was a distributor
of pésticides, 7 U.S.C. Sec. 136 1{a).

4. On or about Juiy 21, 1975, Hygienic Sanitation Company, acting
through its employces, Messrs. Carson and Potts, distributed the hcsticides
Shell Aldrite 4 And Velsicol Gold Crest Termide Lo Mr. and Mrs. Wayone C.

Veimer.

5. On or about July 21, 1975, liygienic Sanitation Company appiied

Shetl Aldrite 4 in a wanner inconsistent with its Tabelling by applying

it to the HWehuwer's garden and apple tree, and thus violated 7 U.S.C.

§136j(a)(2)(y).
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6. On or about Ju]} 2, 1975, Nyyi-nic Sanitation Company applied
She]] Aldyite 4 in a manner inconsisteni with its labelling by applying it
above ground tojthe corners and eaves of the Weimer's residence and
thus violated 7 U.S5.C. 8§136j{(a){?}(q). ‘
7. On or about July 21, 1975, Hygienic Sanitation Company applied
Shell Aldrite 4 in a manner inconsistent with its labetTing by applying it
to the Weimer's residence so as to allow the pesticide to come into contact
with a stream and beneficial wildlife and thus violated 7 U.5.C. S136j(a){2)(q).
8. On or about July 21, 1975, ilygienic Sanitation Company applied
Velsicol Gold Crest Termide in a manner inconsistent with its labelling
by applying it to the Weimer's garden and apple tree, and thus violatod
7 U.S.C. 81363{a)(2)(9g).
9. On or ahout July 21, 1975, Hygienic Sanitation Company applied
Velsicol Gold Crest Termide in a manner inconsistent with its Tabelling
by applying it above around to the corners and eaves of the Weimer's residence
and thus violated 7 U.S.C. §136j(a){2)(y).
10.. On or about July 21, 1975, Hygienic Sanitation Company applied
Velsicol Gold Crest Termide in a wanner inconsistent with ité labelling
by applying it to the Weimer's residence so as to allow the pesticide to
5 come into conlact-with a stream and beneficial wildlife and thus violaled
: 7 U.5.C. $1363(a)(2).
1. For the above-mentioned violations of FIFRA, Respondent s subject

‘ Lo a civil penalty under Section 14 {a)(1) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.T. 5136{u)1.

12. Taking inle consideration the size of Rospondenl's business,

the effect on Respondent’'s ability fo‘continue in business, and the gravity
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- ot ihe violalions (including Respondeni’ prior hiétory of violations of

FIFRA); it is determined that a penalty . 1 310,500 is appropriate.

CONCLUSTOM

Complainant has proposed a civil penalty of $§5,000 for each pf Six
scparate violations, (supra. p. 2) for a total of $30,000.

I agrec that the full penalty of 35,000 should be assessed relative
to the fact that the pesticides Shell Aldvite 4 Louisifiable Concenlrate
[nsecticide and Velsicol Gold Cresl Termide were allowed to come into
contact with and substantially and adversely affect a stream and beneficial
wild]ife. However, since the record indicates that both pesticides were
used and it 315 not ciear to whal extent or amounl or at whaf points on the
premiscs gither was uscd, Mr. Carson thinking he was using only one of
them, [ consider this to be one violation and not iwo scparate violations.

A civil penalty of $5,000 is assessed for such violation.

The rodding and spraying of the apple tree and the spraying of the
corners and eaves do ¢onstilute misuses for which penalties shatl be
assessed. it seems obvious that these services werce pevrformed by Mr. Carson
and Mr. Potts with Lhe lhought in mind of assisting the Weimers in resolving
problems for which they were not hired. 1n spite of this gratuitous effort,
both men should have known Lhal to proceed with such Lveatment would be in
violalion of label uses. This is one of the types of actions which Lhis
law is intended Lo hali. Therefore, a ¢ivil penalty of $2,500 is assessed

for cach violation for a total of $5,000.

The spraying of the garden was only incidental to the other misuses

and was not intentionally accomplished.

However, again this is a wisuse of




the pesticides and warrants assessment ¥ g civil penalty of $500.

The total civil penalty assessed i reby s 510,500,

9/
FINAL ORDLR

Pursuant Lo Scclion 14{a){1) of:the Federal Insecticidé, Fungicide,
and Rodenticide hcl, as amended, 7 U.S.C. Section 136 1{a)(1) (Supp. Vv,
1975), a civil penaily of $10,500 s assessed against Respondent, Hygienic
Sanitation Company, Inc., For the violations which have been established
on the complaint, as amended, issued on June 15, 1977 and Hygienic is

ordered to pay this amount by cashier's or certified check, payable to

the United States of America, within sixly days of receipt of this final

order.

—{Zwﬂﬁ Zewek

fLbnns Ry F T .
Ldward B. Finc
Admintstrative Law Judge

December 21, 1978

9/ Unless an appeal is taken by the filing of exceplions bursuant o
Section 168.51 of the rules of praclice, 40 C.F.R. 168.51, or Lhe Regional

Administrator elects Lo review thig decision on his own motion, the arder
shall become the Final order of the Adminisirator. See 40 C.F.R. 168.46{c}.




